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FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

[Docket No. 14–13] 

Metro Freight Services, Inc. d/b/a 
Maritime Express Lines—Possible 
Violations of the Shipping Act; Order 
of Investigation and Hearing 

The Federal Maritime Commission 
(Commission) deems it appropriate and 
in the public interest that a proceeding 
be, and hereby is, instituted pursuant to 
section 11 of the Shipping Act of 1984 
(Shipping Act), 46 U.S.C. 41302, against 
respondent Metro Freight Services, Inc., 
a licensed and bonded ocean freight 
forwarder and non-vessel-operating 
common carrier (NVOCC), for possible 
violations of the Commission’s 
regulations at 46 CFR 515.18(c) and 
515.42(i) and section 19(e)(3) of the 
Shipping Act, 46 U.S.C. 40904(c). 

Based on information provided to it, 
the Commission’s Bureau of 
Enforcement makes the following 
allegations: 

Statement of Facts Constituting Basis of 
Violations 

1. Metro Freight Services, Inc. dba 
Maritime Express Lines (M.E.L.) (Metro 
Freight) is a licensed, tariffed and 
bonded ocean transportation 
intermediary (OTI), providing service as 
a freight forwarder and NVOCC (Org. 
No. 006490). 

2. Metro Freight’s offices are located 
at 1225 West St. George Avenue, 
Linden, New Jersey 07036. 

3. Metro Freight was incorporated in 
the State of New York in 1985, and is 
registered with the State of New Jersey 
as a foreign corporation doing business 
in that state. 

4. Metro Freight holds itself out to do 
OTI business through its Internet Web 
site, www.metroiff.com. 

5. Metro Freight holds itself out as an 
NVOCC through its automated tariff 
(#006490–001) published by 
Distribution Publications, Inc at http:// 
www.dpiusa.com. 

6. Metro Freight maintains an NVOCC 
bond, No. 570364, in the amount of 
$75,000 and a freight forwarder bond, 
No. W6009, in the amount of $50,000 
with American Alternative Insurance 
Corporation in Princeton, New Jersey. 

7. Through April 2010, OTI licensing 
records maintained by the 
Commission’s Bureau of Certification 
and Licensing (BCL) identify Georges T. 
Samaha as the sole Qualifying 
Individual (QI) for Metro Freight. 

8. On or about February 29, 2012, 
Metro Freight submitted to the 
Commission’s Bureau of Enforcement 
(BOE) written responses to an OTI 

compliance questionnaire, dated 
February 2, 2012. 

9. Metro Freight’s February 29, 2012 
response identified its QI, Georges 
Samaha, as deceased. 

10. On information and belief, the 
former QI and owner of Metro Freight, 
Georges Samaha, passed away on 
August 6, 2011. 

11. Metro Freight’s February 29, 2012 
response identified Metro Freight as 
having handled 634 export ocean 
shipments as an OTI ocean freight 
forwarder in the 12 months immediately 
prior. 

12. Metro Freight’s February 29, 2012 
response identified G&M Export 
Corporation as a shipper of cargo 
affiliated with Metro Freight. 

13. Metro Freight’s February 29, 2012 
response identified G&M Export’s 
address as 1225 West St. George 
Avenue, Linden, New Jersey 07036. 

14. Metro Freight’s February 29, 2012 
response identified G&M Export as 
sharing office space, expenses and/or 
personnel with Metro Freight. 

15. Metro Freight’s February 29, 2012 
response identified Paola C. Samaha as 
the 100% owner of G&M Export. 

16. By letter dated March 6, 2012, 
BOE advised Metro Freight of its 
obligation to submit an application for 
a proposed replacement QI. 46 CFR 
515.18(c). 

17. By follow-up letter to BOE dated 
March 16, 2012, Metro Freight advised 
that it had collected freight forwarder 
compensation on 28 shipments in 
which G&M Export was the shipper 
named on the bill of lading issued by 
the ocean common carrier, United Arab 
Shipping Company (UASC). 

18. On or about May 11, 2012, Metro 
Freight submitted an application 
designating Paola C. Samaha as the 
proposed QI for Metro Freight, replacing 
Georges Samaha. Mrs. Samaha was 
identified therein as the President and 
100% owner of Metro Freight. 

19. In support of its application, 
Metro Freight submitted a copy of a 
corporate resolution dated January 3, 
2012, designating Paola Samaha as 
President of Metro Freight to replace the 
‘‘decedent President, Mr. Georges T. 
Samaha.’’ 

20. On June 26, 2012, Metro Freight 
was notified by letter that the 
Commission’s Bureau of Certification 
and Licensing (BCL) closed its 
application for failure to demonstrate 
that the proposed QI, Paola Samaha, met 
the requirements to demonstrate prior 
OTI-related work experience. 

21. BCL’s June 26, 2012 letter notified 
Metro Freight that it was required to 
promptly submit another application to 

replace the QI, and that continued 
operation could result in civil penalties. 

22. BCL receive no response from 
Metro Freight regarding the letter issued 
June 26, 2012. 

23. Through September 1, 2014, the 
Commission’s Bureau of Certification 
and Licensing has not approved a 
replacement QI for Metro Freight. 

24. According to records of the New 
York State Division of Corporations, 
G&M Export was incorporated in the 
State of New York in 1990. 

25. According to records of the New 
York State Division of Corporations, 
G&M Export’s address is 1225 West St. 
George Avenue, Linden, New Jersey 
07036. 

26. According to records of the New 
York State Division of Corporations, 
Paola C. Samaha is currently the 
Chairman and CEO of G&M Export. 

27. According to records in the 
Commission’s SERVCON database, G&M 
Export is identified as the shipper party 
named in service contracts with United 
Arab Shipping Company (UASC), an 
ocean common carrier. 

28. UASC service contract No. 2009– 
130 was first executed on or about 
February 20, 2009 and signed by 
Georges T. Samaha as President and 
CEO of G&M Export. 

29. In entering into UASC service 
contract No. 2009–130, G&M Export 
certified that its shipper status was 
cargo owner. 

30. The term of UASC service contract 
No. 2009–130 was February 20, 2009 
through February 19, 2010. UASC 
service contract No. 2009–130 was 
extended by contract amendments 
through March 31, 2011. 

31. UASC service contract No. 124288 
was first executed on or about April 1, 
2011 and signed by Paola C. Kamel as 
President and CEO of G&M Export. 

32. In entering into UASC service 
contract No. 124288, G&M Export 
certified that its shipper status was 
cargo owner. 

33. The term of UASC service contract 
No. 124288 was April 1, 2011 through 
March 31, 2012. 

34. UASC service contract No. 187966 
was first executed on or about April 17, 
2012 and signed by Paola Samaha on 
behalf of G&M Export. 

35. On information and belief, Paola 
C. Kamel and Paola C. Samaha are the 
same person. 

36. In entering into UASC service 
contract No. 187996, G&M Export 
certified that its shipper status was 
cargo owner. 

37. The term of UASC service contract 
No. 187966 was April 1, 2012 through 
April 30, 2013. UASC service contract 
No. 187966 was terminated by 
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Amendment 3, effective February 5, 
2013. 

38. With respect to the 25 shipments 
identified in Attachment A, G&M Export 
was identified as the shipper on the 
UASC ocean bill of lading. 

39. With respect to the 25 shipments 
identified in Attachment A, Metro 
Freight invoiced or collected freight 
forwarder compensation for shipments 
in which G&M Exports was the shipper. 

40. On May 28, 2014, the 
Commission’s New York Area 
Representative Ron Podlaskowich 
visited Metro Freight’s offices and 
interviewed staff at the offices of Metro 
Freight, and confirmed that Metro 
Freight was still operating as an OTI in 
the absence of an approved QI. 

The Commission’s Jurisdiction and 
Requirements of Law 

41. Each OTI licensee must have and 
continuously maintain an approved 
Qualifying Individual having the 
necessary experience in OTI activities 
and the necessary character to render 
OTI services. The Commission’s 
regulations at 46 CFR 515.18(a)(6) and 
(c) require that when a corporation has 
been licensed on the basis of the 
qualifications of an officer of the 
company and that individual no longer 
serves in a full time and active capacity, 
the licensee must report such change to 
the Commission within 30 days and 
within that time period furnish to the 
Commission the names and detailed 
intermediary experience of any other 
active officer who may qualify the 
licensee. 

42. Section 19(e) of the Shipping Act, 
46 U.S.C. 40904 states that an ocean 
freight forwarder may not ‘‘receive 
compensation from a common carrier 
for a shipment in which the ocean 
freight forwarder has a direct or indirect 
beneficial interest.’’ The Commission 
regulations further specify that a freight 
forwarder ‘‘may not receive 
compensation from a common carrier 
with respect to any shipment in which 
the forwarder has a beneficial interest or 
with respect to any shipment in which 
the holding company, subsidiary, 
affiliate, officer, director, agent or 
executive of such forwarder has a 
beneficial interest.’’ 46 CFR 515.42(i). 

43. The activities of Metro Freight, 
identified above, were provided as part 
of and in connection with transportation 
by water of cargo between the United 
States and a foreign country for 
compensation over which the 
Commission has jurisdiction. 

44. Under 46 U.S.C. 41302(a), the 
Commission is empowered to 
investigate any conduct or agreement 

that the Commission believes may be in 
violation of the Shipping Act. 

45. The Commission may, after notice 
and opportunity for hearing, issue an 
order relating to any violation of the 
Shipping Act, including assessment of a 
civil penalty. 46 U.S.C. 41304. 

46. The Commission may suspend or 
revoke an OTI license if the Commission 
finds that the OTI willfully failed to 
comply with an order or regulation of 
the Commission. 46 U.S.C. 40903(a). 

Violations of the Shipping Act and 
Commission Regulations 

47. It is alleged that Metro Freight 
violated the Commission’s regulations at 
46 CFR 515.18(a)(6) and (c) by failing to 
promptly notify the Commission of the 
death of its QI and failing to timely seek 
and obtain approval of a replacement 
Qualifying Individual. 

48. It is alleged that, with respect to 
the 25 shipments identified in 
Attachment A, Metro Freight violated 
section 19(e)(3) of the Shipping Act and 
the Commission’s regulations at 46 CFR 
515.42(i), by receiving freight forwarder 
compensation from a common carrier 
for shipments in which Metro Freight 
had a direct or indirect beneficial 
interest. 

Order 

Now therefore, it is ordered, That 
pursuant to sections 11 and 14 of the 
Shipping Act, 46 U.S.C. 41302 and 
41304, an investigation is instituted to 
determine: (1) Whether Metro Freight 
Services Inc. violated (a) the 
Commission’s regulations at 46 CFR 
515.18(a)(6) and (c) by failing to 
promptly notify the Commission of the 
death of its QI and to timely seek and 
obtain approval of a replacement QI; 
and (b) section 19(e)(3) of the Shipping 
Act, 46 U.S.C. 40904(c), and the 
Commission’s regulations at 46 CFR 
515.42(i), by receiving freight forwarder 
compensation for shipments in which 
the forwarder had a direct or indirect 
beneficial interest; (2) in the event 
violations of the Shipping Act or the 
Commission’s regulations are found, 
whether civil penalties should be 
assessed against Metro Freight, and in 
what amount; (3) whether the OTI 
license of Metro Freight should be 
suspended or revoked pursuant to 
section 19 of the Shipping Act; and (4) 
whether appropriate cease and desist 
orders should be entered; 

It is further ordered, That Metro 
Freight Services, Inc. is designated 
Respondent in this proceeding; 

It is further ordered, That the 
Commission’s Bureau of Enforcement is 
made a party to this proceeding; 

It is further ordered, That within 25 
days from date of publication of this 
Order in the Federal Register, 
Respondent must file with the 
Commission and serve upon the Bureau 
of Enforcement an Answer to the 
allegations in this Order, in accordance 
with the requirements of the 
Commission’s regulations set forth in 46 
CFR 502.63(c). Respondent’s answer 
must be verified and admit or deny all 
allegations in this Order. Allegations not 
denied shall be deemed admitted; 

It is further ordered, That this matter 
be assigned for hearing before an 
Administrative Law Judge of the 
Commission’s Office of Administrative 
Law Judges at a date and place to be 
determined by the Administrative Law 
Judge in compliance with Rule 61 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 46 CFR 502.61. This hearing 
shall include oral testimony and cross- 
examination in the discretion of the 
presiding Administrative Law Judge 
only after consideration has been given 
by the parties and the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge to the use of 
alternative forms of dispute resolution, 
and upon a proper showing that there 
are genuine issues of material fact that 
cannot be resolved on the basis of sworn 
statements, affidavits, depositions, or 
other documents or that the nature of 
the matters in issue is such that an oral 
hearing and cross-examination are 
necessary for the development of an 
adequate record; 

It is further ordered, That failure of 
Respondent to timely file an answer to 
this Order may be deemed to constitute 
default and authorize the presiding 
Administrative Law Judge, without 
further notice to Respondent, to find the 
facts to be as alleged and to enter a 
decision containing appropriate 
findings, conclusions, and an order; 

It is further ordered, That other 
persons having an interest in 
participating in this proceeding may file 
motions for leave to intervene in 
accordance with Rule 68 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 46 CFR 502.68; 

It is further ordered, That all further 
notices, orders, and/or decisions issued 
by or on behalf of the Commission in 
this proceeding, including notice of the 
time and place of hearing or prehearing 
conference, shall be served on the 
parties of record; 

It is further ordered, That all 
documents filed by any party of record 
in this proceeding shall be directed to 
the Secretary, Federal Maritime 
Commission, Washington, DC 20573, in 
accordance with Rule 2 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
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Procedure, 46 CFR 502.2, and shall be 
served on the parties of record; and 

It is further ordered, That in 
accordance with Rule 61 of the 
Commission’s Rules of Practice and 
Procedure, 46 CFR 502.61, the initial 
decision of the Administrative Law 
Judge shall be issued by September 29, 
2015, and the final decision of the 
Commission shall be issued by March 
28, 2016. 

By the Commission. 
Karen V. Gregory, 
Secretary. 

Order of Investigation and Hearing 

Attachment A 

SHIPMENTS UPON WHICH METRO 
FREIGHT SERVICES INC. ALLEGEDLY 
OBTAINED FORWARDER COMPENSA-
TION IN VIOLATION OF SECTION 
19(e) OF THE SHIPPING ACT 

No. UASC Ocean bill of 
lading number 

Date of 
issue 

1 .. USCQG028534 ............... 12/11/2010 
2 .. USCQG027253 ............... 12/12/2010 
3 .. USCQG029247 ............... 12/23/2010 
4 .. USCQG029603 ............... 01/03/2011 
5 .. USCQG030665 ............... 01/20/2011 
6 .. USCQG032192 ............... 01/27/2011 
7 .. USCQG040363 ............... 05/12/2011 
8 .. USCQG041856 ............... 05/26/2011 
9 .. USCQG042415 ............... 05/26/2011 
10 USCQG040722 ............... 05/29/2011 
11 USCQG043224 ............... 06/16/2011 
12 USCQG043092 ............... 06/23/2011 
13 USCQG044329 ............... 06/23/2011 
14 USCQG043103 ............... 06/30/2011 
15 USCQG044899 ............... 06/30/2011 
16 USCQG043090 ............... 06/30/2011 
17 USCQG043105 ............... 07/07/2011 
18 USCQG046169 ............... 07/14/2011 
19 USCQG045558 ............... 07/14/2001 
20 USCQG048972 ............... 08/22/2011 
21 USCQG049349 ............... 08/25/2011 
22 USCQG053301 ............... 10/08/2011 
23 USCQG053172 ............... 10/15/2011 
24 USCQG057132 ............... 11/17/2011 
25 USCQG060236 ............... 12/27/2011 

[FR Doc. 2014–23645 Filed 10–3–14; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6730–01–P 

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

Ocean Transportation Intermediary 
License Applicants 

The Commission gives notice that the 
following applicants have filed an 
application for an Ocean Transportation 
Intermediary (OTI) license as a Non- 
Vessel-Operating Common Carrier 
(NVO) and/or Ocean Freight Forwarder 
(OFF) pursuant to section 19 of the 
Shipping Act of 1984 (46 U.S.C. 40101). 
Notice is also given of the filing of 

applications to amend an existing OTI 
license or the Qualifying Individual (QI) 
for a licensee. 

Interested persons may contact the 
Office of Ocean Transportation 
Intermediaries, Federal Maritime 
Commission, Washington, DC 20573, by 
telephone at (202) 523–5843 or by email 
at OTI@fmc.gov. 
ACE International, Inc. (NVO & OFF), 

144 Riverview Park Road, Jackson, GA 
30233, Officers: Norma K. Williams, 
Secretary (QI), David Higgs, President, 
Application Type: Removal of Trade 
Name Ocean Cargo Express and QI 
Change. 

AFCO Shipping Line, LLC (NVO & 
OFF), 1501 NW 12th Avenue, 
Pompano Beach, FL 33069, Officer: 
Avi Nir, General Manager (QI), 
Application Type: New NVO & OFF 
License. 

AIT Ocean Systems Inc. (NVO), 701 W. 
Rohlwing Road, Itasca, IL 60143, 
Officers: Gregory W. Weigel, Vice 
President (QI), Vaughn Moore, 
President, Application Type: Transfer 
to AIT Worldwide Logistics, Inc. 

Global Port Ship Lines, Inc. (NVO & 
OFF), 103 East 3rd Street, Bevington, 
IA 50033, Officer: Timothy Pontier, 
President (QI), Application Type: Add 
NVO Service. 

Grandbelle International, Inc. (NVO), 
145 Hook Creek Boulevard, Suite 
B6A, Valley Stream, NY 11581, 
Officer: Francisca Enyaosa, CEO (QI), 
Application Type: New NVO License. 

GreenShields Cowie (U.S.A.) Inc. (OFF), 
1635 East Highway 50, Suite 200, 
Clermont, FL 34711, Officers: Sary S. 
Chun, Secretary (QI), Lee Chacksfield, 
President, Application Type: QI 
Change. 

Interlog USA, Inc. (NVO), 9380 Central 
Avenue NE, Suite 350, Blaine, MN 
55434, Officers: David Canfield, 
President (QI), Justin Engelmeier, 
Secretary, Application Type: QI 
Change. 

International Cargotrans Inc. (NVO & 
OFF), 9245 Laguna Springs Drive, 
Suite 200, Elk Grove, CA 95758, 
Officers: Karl W. Tede, Director (QI), 
Linda S. Cardenas, Director, 
Application Type: New NVO & OFF 
License. 

Latam Cargo USA LLC (NVO & OFF), 
4624 NW 74th Avenue, Miami, FL 
33166, Officer: Jose G. Suarez, 
Managing Member (QI), Application 
Type: New NVO & OFF License. 

Sam Taghavi dba US General Shipping 
(NVO & OFF), 24328 S. Vermont 
Avenue, Suite 222, Harbor City, CA 
90710, Officers: Sam Taghavi, Sole 
Proprietor (QI), Application Type: 
New NVO & OFF License. 

Versailles Shipping, LLC (NVO & OFF), 
1759 N. Florida Mango Rd, Suite 8, 
West Palm Beach, FL 33409, Officers: 
Sheldon Serrao, Manager (QI), 
Ricardo Charles, Member, Application 
Type: New NVO & OFF License. 
Pursuant To The Commission’s Direct 

Final Rule (79 FR 56522), Beginning October 
20, 2014, These Notices Will No Longer Be 
Posted In The Federal Register. After October 
20, 2014, This Information Will Be Available 
On The Commission’s Web site at 
http://www.Fmc.Gov. See OTI Licensing 
Updates. 

By the Commission. 
Dated: September 30, 2014. 

Karen V. Gregory, 
Secretary. 
[FR Doc. 2014–23649 Filed 10–3–14; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6730–01–P 

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

Ocean Transportation Intermediary 
License Reissuance 

The Commission gives notice that the 
following Ocean Transportation 
Intermediary license has been reissued 
pursuant to section 19 of the Shipping 
Act of 1984 (46 U.S.C. 40101). 

License No.: 014257N. 
Name: Trans-Union Group New York 

Co., Ltd. 
Address: One Cross Island Plaza, 

Suite 229–C, Rosedale, NY 11422. 
Date Reissued: September 3, 2014. 
Pursuant to the Commission’s direct 

final rule (79 FR 56522), beginning 
October 20, 2014, these notices will no 
longer be posted in the Federal Register. 
After October 20, 2014, this information 
will be available on the Commission’s 
Web site at http:/www.fmc.gov. See OTI 
Licensing Updates. 

Sandra L. Kusumoto, 
Director, Bureau of Certification and 
Licensing. 
[FR Doc. 2014–23648 Filed 10–3–14; 8:45 am] 

BILLING CODE 6730–01–P 

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION 

Ocean Transportation Intermediary 
License Rescission of Order of 
Revocation 

The Commission gives notice that the 
Order revoking the following Ocean 
Transportation Intermediary license has 
been rescinded pursuant to section 19 of 
the Shipping Act of 1984 (46 U.S.C. 
40101). 

License Number: 019113N. 
Name: Amoy International, LLC dba 

Amoy Line dba VMS Lines. 
Address: 14145 Proctor Avenue, Suite 

14, City of Industry, CA 91746. 
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